
 
 
 

Board Meeting Agenda 
 
 

Russ Baggerly, Director 
Mary Bergen, Director 
Bill Hicks, Director 

Pete Kaiser, Director 
James Word, Director 

 
 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
March 14, 2012 

3:00 P.M. – DISTRICT OFFICE 
 

 
Right to be heard:  Members of the public have a right to address the Board directly on any 
item of interest to the public which is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  The 
request to be heard should be made immediately before the Board's consideration of the item. 
No action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by subdivision (b) of  ¶54954.2 of the Government Code and except that 
members of a legislative body or its staff may briefly respond to statements made or questions 
posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights under section 54954.3 of the 
Government Code. 

 
 

1. Public Comments 
     
2. General Manager comments.   
 
3. Board of Director comments. 

 
4. Consent Agenda 
 

a. Minutes of the February 22, 2012 Board Meeting. 
b. Resolution awarding a contract for LCRA Lazy River Repairs 

Specification 12-352 to Industrial Coating & Restoration, Inc. in the 
amount of $69,498.00. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Consent Agenda 
 

5. Bills 
 
6. Committee/Manager Reports 
 

a. Executive Committee Minutes 
b. Recreation Committee Minutes 

 
7. Discussion and direction regarding possible addendum to recently 

adopted MOU’s with SEIU represented employees regarding the Holiday 
policy. 

 

 1



 2

8. Redistricting 
 

a. Recommend passing a motion that the populations of the divisions 
are sufficiently different, based on the 2010 Census, to require a 
change in division boundaries based on the current populations of 
the division. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 

 
b. Resolution changing the boundaries of the divisions and requesting 

the Elections Division at the County of Ventura to implement the 
new division boundaries before the November 2012 election. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 

 
9. Recommend approval of a letter to CPUC regarding the Public Notice for 

GSWC Application No. 11-07-017. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 
 
10. Information Items: 
 

a. Monthly Cost Analysis for operation of Robles, fisheries and fish 
passage. 

b. Letter from Tessa Roper regarding Golden State Water Company 
public comment to CPUC. 

c. News Articles. 
d. Investment Report. 

 
11. Closed Session 
 
 a. (Govt. Code Sec. 54956.9 (c)) 

Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation (One case). 
 
12. Adjournment  
  

If you require special accommodations for attendance at or participation in this 
meeting, please notify our office 24 hours in advance at (805) 649-2251, ext. 
113.  (Govt. Code Section 54954.1 and 54954.2(a). 



 1

Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District 
Board Meeting Held 
February 22, 2012 

 
 A meeting of the Board of Directors was held February 22, 2012 at 
Casitas' Office, Oak View, California.  Directors Baggerly, Word, Hicks, Bergen 
and Kaiser were present. Also present were Steve Wickstrum, General Manager, 
Rebekah Vieira, Clerk of the Board, and Attorney, John Mathews.  There were 
three staff members and no members of the public in attendance.  President 
Baggerly led the group in the flag salute. 
 

1. Public Comments 
 

None 
 
2. General Manager comments.   
  

Mr. Wickstrum reported on the lack of rainfall and that it was 80 degrees 
on this late February day.  He informed the board that next Wednesday there will 
be a shut down on the Santa Ana Main out to the Recreation Area and Casitas 
Fire Station.  The following week there will be a shut down on the Santa Ana 
Main that goes in the watershed.  We are sending out flyers to Rancho Matilija 
and will contact their homeowners association.  Mr. Wickstrum then informed the 
board that the fusion of the pipe on Rincon 2 M has started.  If you want to look 
at it we could go up and see the operation.  There has been a small change 
order as the PVC pipe manufacturer backed out and we moved to hdpe which I 
prefer.  The cost is $15,000 more but it is better pipe.   
 

Mr. Wickstrum mentioned the notice regarding the filing of the appeal with 
the court in DC.  He then informed the board of the two CPUC meetings being 
held in Ojai.  Ms. Bergen stated she would attend the 2:00 meeting.  
 
3. Board of Director comments. 
 
 Director Hicks informed the board of the Coastal Commission meeting 
being held in Ventura for the first time.  The agenda is regarding development in 
the area.  He will forward the information to Rebekah and it will be forwarded to 
the Board. 
 
 President Baggerly mentioned the notice on the SOD meeting and that he 
could not be on the conference call that date.  It was then determined that the 
Finance Committee is handling the SOD meetings and both Directors Bergen 
and Word are available for the teleconference on March 6th. 
 

Mr. Mathews then mentioned a change to the agenda suggesting that 
closed session item 12 c be placed on the regular action agenda.  It is a 
recommendation to approve or deny a claim.  It was made agenda item 10 a. 
 
4. Consent Agenda       ADOPTED 



 2

 

a. Minutes of the January 7, 2012 Board Meeting. 
b. Minutes of the February 8, 2012 Board Meeting. 
c. Recommend receipt of the Casitas Water Adventure End of Year 

report. 
d. Recommend letters of appreciation to Sue Hughes and Anthony 

Emmert for their assistance with Prop 50 supplemental funding. 
e. Resolution authorizing withdrawal of membership in Ventura 

County Regional Energy Alliance. 
 
Director Word asked that the January 7th minutes, page six, second 

paragraph be re-worded as it is difficult to understand what was discussed. He 
also asked that Steve’s comment later is not clear how they get to a million 
dollars a year and it needs to be re-worded.  It will keep accumulating to where it 
will be over a million dollars a year.  President Baggerly asked that page seven, 
the last sentence be changed as it was not the chairs prerogative to move it to 
the Executive Committee but that Director Kaiser suggested that it be moved to 
Executive Committee.  He also requested the minutes reflect Director Kaiser’s 
question of counsel if this would have bearing on the Casitas case and counsel 
answered absolutely. 
 
 The Consent Agenda with changes to the minutes was offered by Director 
Word, seconded by Director Bergen and passed with Director Kaiser abstaining 
from the vote for the portion approving the minutes from the February 8 Board 
Meeting as he was not in attendance.  The Consent Agenda was passed by the 
following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly  
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
  Resolution is numbered 12-08. 
 
5. Bills         APPROVED 
 

Director Hicks questioned the roof repairs for $22,000.  Mr. Wickstrum 
explained that is for the roof at the Casitas chlorination station, one of the 
Bureau’s buildings.  Director Hicks asked if we obtained bids on the project and 
Mr. Wickstrum replied yes. 
 

Director Hicks then asked about the payment to the State of California, 
EDD for $2624.08 reimbursable benefit charges.  Denise Collin explained this is 
for reimbursement to the state for unemployment payments. They pay the benefit 
and then bill us for it.  President Baggerly added it is probably best not to talk 
about personnel issues at the board meeting. You can check with her later. 
 
 On the motion of Director Word, seconded by Director Hicks and passed, 
the bills were approved. 
 



 3

6. Committee/Manager Reports   APPROVED FOR FILING 
 

a. Executive Committee Minutes 
b. Personnel Committee Minutes 
c. Finance Committee Minutes 

 
Director Hicks asked about moving of the division boundaries.  Mr. 

Wickstrum explained that we try to do this when we get the census data.  We are 
looking to make a small change.  Director Bergen’s Division is small and Director 
Kaiser’s is too high.  This balance is sometimes hard to achieve due to dealing 
with election district boundaries.  
 
 Director Word asked that the Executive Committee minutes be changed to 
reflect the change of Committee members to Directors Baggerly and Word. 
Director Word asked about the Personnel Committee meeting time and date.  It 
has been changed to the second Monday at 4:30 p.m. 
 
 On the motion of Director Bergen, seconded by Director Hicks and 
passed, the Committee/Manager Reports were approved for filing. 
   
7. Resolution awarding award of a contract SWRCB Grant Improvement 

Project – Pipe Bridge and Instrumentation, Specification 11-344 to Toro 
Enterprises Inc in the amount of $515,200. 

          ADOPTED 
   

Mr. Wickstrum informed that board that this is a project we have long 
awaited to get started to help Senior Canyon use their water supplies more 
efficiently.  Ron Merckling, Sue Hughes and Tony Emmert have worked hard to 
make this happen.  We were short of money and the City of Oxnard had extra 
grant money left over.  There was a request and offering to transfer those grant 
funds to us so we can do this project.  Mr. Merckling mentioned that President 
Baggerly spoke with the Board of Supervisors when this was approved.  Mr. 
Wickstrum explained that it was good that the parties in this county moved 
$438,000 from Oxnard to Senior Canyon.  We are pulling the SCADA project and 
other work from this bid as it will be completed through a different contract. 
President Baggerly added that this kind of cooperation is unprecedented except 
in Ventura County.   
 

The resolution was offered by Director Word, seconded by Director 
Bergen and adopted by the following roll call vote: 

 
AYES: Directors: Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly  

  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
  Resolution is numbered 12-09. 
 



 4

8. Recommend approval of a letter to Ventura County Resource 
Management Agency regarding the Mosler Quarry. 

          DENIED 
 
 President Baggerly passed the gavel to Director Word and then made a 
motion to approve the above recommendation.  The motion died for lack of a 
second. 
 
9. Recommend approval of leak relief to the estate of Pauline Davis in care 

of Diane Atkinson in the amount of $1,370.08.   APPROVED 
  
 On the motion of Director Word, in keeping with current policy, seconded 
by Director Bergen and passed, the above leak relief was approved.  
  
10. Recommend approval of the agreement for the operation and 

management of the Casitas Water Adventure Temporary Seasonal Snack 
Bar Concession at Lake Casitas Recreation Area with the Butcher Shop. 

APPROVED 
 
 On the motion of Director Kaiser, seconded by Director Hicks and passed, 
the above recommendation was approved. 
 
10 (a).  Claim for State Farm and their demand for $6,177.27 for a rupture of a 
bidet pipe.          DENIED 
 

Mr. Wickstrum recommended that this claim be denied as the property in 
question is at the Hitching Post Estates in Ojai and they have backflow devices 
and pressure regulators. 
 
 On the motion of Director Word, seconded by Director Hicks and passed 
the recommendation to deny the above referenced claim was passed. 
 
11. Information Items: 
 

a. Recreation Area Report for January 2012. 
b. Letter from Ventura River County Water District regarding 

assistance received from Casitas employee Jerry Herrera. 
c. Results from recent Surplus Sale. 
d. Informational memo regarding the preliminary budget preparation 

schedule. 
e. News Articles. 
f. Investment Report. 

 
12. Closed Session 
 

President Baggerly moved the meeting to closed session at 4:04 p.m. with 
John Mathews stating the closed session was to cover items 12 a, b and d of the 



 5

closed session agenda.  Item c had been discussed in open session as item 10 
a. 

a. Conference with Real Property Negotiators (Govt. Code Sec. 
54956.8) 

 Property:  Lake Casitas Recreation Area Marina 
   Park Store 

  
  Agency Negotiator: Steve Wickstrum 
  Under Negotiation: Terms, price and contractual conditions 

 
b. (Govt. Code Sec. 54956.9 (c)) 

Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation (One case). 
 

c. Liability Claims (Govt. Code Sec, 54956.95 
 Claimant: State Farm  
 Agency Claimed Against: Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
 Handled in open session as item 10 a. 
 
d. Public Employee Performance Evaluation (Govt. Code Sec. 54957) 

  Title: General Manager     TABLED 
 

President Baggerly moved the meeting back into open session at 5:01 
p.m. with John Mathews stating two items were discussed in closed session.  
Under the first item, conference with real property negotiators, the board gave 
direction to the negotiators and no specific action was taken.  On the second 
item, conference with legal counsel on anticipated litigation the board gave oral 
instructions to the General Manager to open a dialog with the City of Ojai.  The 
Public Employee Performance Evaluation was tabled to the next meeting. 
 
13. Discussion and possible recommendation for approval of modification to 

the General Manager’s compensation.      TABLED 
 
14. Adjournment  
 

President Baggerly adjourned the meeting at 5:02 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
       _________________________ 
       Bill Hicks, Secretary 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO:  STEVE WICKSTRUM, GENERAL MANAGER 

FROM:  NEIL COLE, CIVIL ENGINEER 

SUBJECT: AWARD CONTRACT-LCRA LAZY RIVER REPAIRS, SPECIFICATION 12-352 

DATE:  MARCH 8, 2012 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt the resolution accepting the proposal 
submitted by the lowest responsible bidder and award the contract for the construction of the 
LCRA Lazy River Repairs, Specification 12-352 to Industrial Coating & Restoration, Inc in the 
amount of $69,498.00.  It is further recommended that the President of the Board execute the 
agreement for said work and the Board authorize staff to proceed with the administration of the 
contract. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 
 
The Lazy River has been in operation since 2003.  In 2011, the Lazy River coaming (faux rock) 
was coated.  It is now time to coat the rest of the Lazy River. The coating system will include a 
cement based water proofing coating followed by an epoxy coating.  The final color will remain 
white. 
 
The project was advertised through F.W. Dodge and the Casitas web site.  Two firms visited 
the site. One firm submitted a proposal.  The bid results are: 
 

FIRM AMOUNT 
Industrial Coating & 
Restoration 

$69,498.00 

 
Industrial Coating & Restoration has successfully completed similar projects for Casitas at the 
Lazy River.  Industrial Coating & Restoration has a current and valid contractor’s license and 
has a satisfactory safety record. 
 
The FY 2011-12 Capital Budget included $75,000 to complete repairs to the Lazy River and 
replace the splash pads.  The replacement of the splash pads will not occur this year.  Some of 
the construction cost may be eligible for funding from the United States Bureau of 
Reclamation. 
 
 
 
 
G:\ENGR.WKS\SPECS\12-352 LCRALazyRiverCoating\award.doc 



U:\Management\Agendas\Board meetings\2012\03-14-12\resolution Lazy River coating and repair.doc 

 CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 

RDING A CONTRACT 
FOR THE LAKE CASITAS RECREATION AREA 

SPECIFICATION NO. 12-352 
 

ids from qualified contractors for the above-referenced 
pro

WHEREAS

, Industrial Coating & Restoration submitted the low bid in the amount of 
$6 98

N rs of the Casitas Municipal 

 
es with the requirements 

esponsive. 
 

storation in the amount of $69,498.00 be 
accepted for the Lake Casitas Recreation Area (LCRA), Specification 12-352 and a contract awarded. 
 

3. That staff is hereby auth  proceed with the administration of the 
contract with Industrial Coating & Res

 

ED this                  

RESOLUTION AWA

LAZY RIVER REPAIRS 

WHEREAS, the District invited b
ject; and 

 
, the District received one bid;  and 

 
WHEREAS

9,4 .00. 
 

OW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directo
Water District as follows: 

1. That Industrial Coating & Restoration bid substantially compli
set forth in the bid invitation and is r 

2. That the bid from Industrial Coating & Re

orized and directed to
toration.  

 
ADOPT  day of                                        , 2012. 

 
____________________________________ 
Russ Baggerly, President  
Casitas Municipal Water District 

ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________________ 
Bill Hicks, Secretary  
Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
 

 

















































CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  March 8, 2012 
TO:         Board of Directors 
FROM: General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Executive Committee Meeting of March 7, 2012  
          
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
MEETING:    

 

1. Roll Call.  Director Baggerly and Director Word, GM Steve Wickstrum 
Public – Jeff Ketelsen 

 
2. Public Comments.   

Mr. Ketelsen expressed interest in the State Water Project as it applies to the 
District.  The Committee informed Mr. Ketelsen on each question. 

 
3. Board/Manager comments.   

Director Baggerly reported that he will be attending the Watershed Coalition of 
Ventura County Climate Change presentation.   

 
The General Manager informed the Committee that on this day the Santa Ana 
Main Extension is being severed from the distribution system.  This action has 
been postponed while waiting for action on the watershed houses, and removes 
a 2-mile dead lateral from the distribution system. 
 
The General Manager also received an invitation to join Ventura Water in 
celebrating World Water Day.  Ventura Water will be screening a new movie on 
the importance of elevating the value of water.  The event requests a RSVP.  The 
invitations will be also provided to directors. 
 
The General Manager shared a letter from Tessa Roper, Ojai property owner, 
and a copy of her letter to the CPUC regarding the Golden State Water Company 
rate hearing.  The Committee asked that the letter be included as information in 
the board agenda. 
 

4. Update on State Water.   
The General Manager reported that Casitas and the City have submitted water to 
the Turn-Back Pool A.  The Committee was informed of the transaction with 
United Water Conservation District for 1,260 AF of Casitas’ water, offered at the 
same price as the Turn-back Pool A, and subsequent changes that were made 
by the Department of Water Resources that appears to have left United with a 
shortage of State Water.  The Committee advised continuing with administration 
of the State Water. 
 



5. Discussion regarding the Redevelopment Agency Dissolution.  
The Committee considered the likely candidate to be appointed to the Oversight 
Committee.  There is a need for more information regarding the commitment 
required.  The representative from the City of Ventura will be contacted to obtain 
more information.  The Committee suggested that this may be well suited for 
Accounting Manager Denise Collin.  The consideration of the appointment will be 
brought to the Board after more information is obtained by the District. 
 

6. Discussion regarding the California Enterprise Development Authority. 
The General Manager brought in an interesting letter from the California 
Enterprise Development Authority (CEDA).  The CEDA plans to form an 
assessment district to finance distributed generation of renewable energy 
resources and energy and water efficiency improvements.  Very little is known 
about CEDA by the District.  The program is voluntary for property owners and 
does not increase the property taxes of non-participating property owners.  Ron 
Merckling will investigate further. 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  March 5, 2012 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM: General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Recreation Committee Meeting of February 3, 2012 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.  Directors Kaiser and Word (alternate) 
 Staff – PSM Carol Belser 
 Public – None 
 
2. Public comments.  None. 

 
3. Board/Management comments. 

PSM Belser reported that a theft of coins from the shower house had occurred Sunday 
morning.  An investigation is on-going. 
 
PSM Belser reported that the on-line reservation system is operating and that over 550 
reservations had been processed since February 1. 
 
The Kid’s Fishing Day is scheduled for March 24th. 
 

4. Discussion and review of the vessel fleet use flow chart. 
PSM Belser presented diagrams that illustrated the assignments for the district’s lake 
vessels.  The key purposes for the vessels are for Lake Ordinance compliance, 
maintenance, water quality and fisheries.  The Committee understood the vessels as 
important tools to the many tasks that the district must accomplish on Lake Casitas. 

 
5. Review of the draft capital budget and Bureau grant funded projects. 

The committee reviewed the direction of staff with the development of the FY2012-13 
budget and the increased list of capital projects.  The funding provided by the Bureau 
will assist the district in accomplishing many projects that are greatly needed at the 
LCRA.  The Committee discussed the deficit in the budget and felt that it was 
justifiable without an increase in the fee structure. 

 
6. Review of claim of Mr. Gushwa regarding stolen propane tank from Trailer 

Storage.  
PSM Belser presented Mr. Gushwa’s claim for a loss that occurred at the Trailer 
Storage.  Staff will move forward to deny the claim, given the liability exclusion that is a 
part of the Trailer Storage contract.   



 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO:  BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM:  ASSISTANT TO GENERAL MANAGER, REBEKAH VIEIRA 

SUBJECT: HOLIDAY POLICY IN RECENTLY ADOPTED MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING WITH GENERAL, RECREATION AND SUPERVISORY 
AND PROFESSIONAL EMPLOYEES. 

DATE:  MARCH 9, 2012 

 

Recommendation: 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors choose one of the following actions:  

1. Recognize Cesar Chavez Day as an authorized holiday for 2012 and 2013 by 
approving an addendum to the current language by adding “As a substitute for “In addition, 
each day declared by the President of the United State or the Governor of the State of 
California as a holiday shall be observed as a Casitas holiday.” In the Article 16 Holidays, 
Section B, the District will recognize Cesar Chavez Day as a regularly scheduled holiday for 
the term of this MOU.” 

2. Continue with the past practice of following the specific days that are listed as 
observed holidays as they are individually listed in Article 16 Holidays of the MOU’s. 

 3. Direct staff to continue to negotiate or to place a closed session negotiation item on 
the following Board agenda for further discussion. 

Background: 

Effective November 1, 2011 the District entered into new MOU’s with the General, 
Recreation and Supervisory & Professional units.  This followed a long negotiation process 
whereby all parties worked diligently to create a more comprehensive MOU. 

Within a few weeks of the adoption of the MOU’s I was informed that there was a 
question regarding holidays and the employees felt they should be provided all additional 
holidays per section 16 such as Cesar Chavez, Columbus Day and Lincoln’s birthday.  
There were some additional items that we wanted to discuss for clarification and ultimately a 
meeting was held with the bargaining units and SEIU.  It was presented that it was never 
the intention of the district to increase the current number of holidays and that this article 
was one in which there were no changes from existing language.  Additionally I suggested 
that in this instance we could look at past practice which was that the additional holidays 
including Cesar Chavez Day were not observed.  SEIU suggested that the district authorize 



2 

Cesar Chavez Day as a paid holiday for this year and next and provided addendum 
language to that effect. 

This is the Holiday Article from the General Unit MOU 

ARTICLE 16  HOLIDAYS 

 
A. Paid holidays shall be authorized only for regular, full-time employees. To be entitled to pay for 

such holidays, an employee must be entitled to pay for both the scheduled working days before 
and after such paid holidays. 

 
B. Regularly scheduled holidays include New Year's Day, Martin Luther King Day, Washington's 

Birthday, Memorial Day, Independent Day, Labor Day, Veteran's Day, Thanksgiving Day and 
Christmas Day.  In addition, each day declared by the President of the United States or the 
Governor of the State of California as a holiday shall be observed as a Casitas holiday.  In the 
event one of the above-named holidays falls on Saturday, the preceding Friday shall be 
considered as the holiday, and in the event one of the holidays falls on Sunday, the Monday 
following shall be considered as the holiday.  Non-exempt employees who may be required to 
work on any of the above holidays shall receive compensation for such time at the overtime rate 
in addition to their holiday pay. 

 
C. In addition to the above holidays, all regular, full-time employees shall be entitled to two 

additional holidays each year as follows: 
  

1. General Unit:  The day following Thanksgiving Day and the working day before or after 
Christmas Day.  
 

2. Recreation Unit:  It shall be Easter and the working day before or after Christmas  
 

D. For those employees whose tours of duty are other than the regular Monday through Friday work 
week, and who are required to work the actual holiday, compensation for such time worked will 
be at the overtime rate.  Additionally, these employees will be given either the time off or receive 
holiday pay for the holiday within the following week, as determined by the supervisor to fulfill 
the needs of the section in the best interest of Casitas.  In the event that the holiday falls on an 
employee's regular day off, equal time off or holiday pay will be given.   

 
The language of concern is in Article 16 section B “In addition, each day declared by the 

President of the United States or the Governor of the State of California as a holiday shall 
be observed as a Casitas holiday.” 

Additionally it should be noted that at some time in the past the district had provided for 
different dates of holidays and had floating holidays.  The last time the holidays were 
changed was to convert floating holidays into the day after Thanksgiving and the day before 
or after Christmas. (Please note: the Recreation Unit has Easter as a holiday rather than the 
day after Thanksgiving).  The issue of Cesar Chavez Day is also one that had been raised 



3 

before with the previous General Manager.  Meetings were held with SEIU regarding the 
holidays and the District did not change their observed holidays at that time. 

The Personnel Committee discussed the holiday policy in February and it was decided 
that the entire board should hear this issue.  The Committee reiterated that it was never the 
intent to increase the amount of holidays as they had compared the number of holidays with 
other entities.  Additionally it was felt by all that the agreements were generous and 
favorable to the employees. 

It is requested that the board take one of the actions listed above or provide further 
direction to staff. 

 



                                   CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  March 9, 2012 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Neil Cole, Principal Civil Engineer 
 
Re:  Redistricting 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors take the following actions: 
 

1. Pass a motion that the population of the divisions are sufficiently different, based 
on the 2010 Census, to require a change in division boundaries based upon the 
current populations of the divisions.  (Requires 2/3 vote) 

2. Adopt the attached resolution changing the boundaries of the divisions and 
requesting the Elections Division at the County of Ventura to implement the new 
division boundaries before the November 2012 election. 

 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 
 
Existing Population of the Divisions: 
 
The existing populations of the divisions per the information provided by the County of 
Ventura are as follows: 
 
Division 1  11,565 
Division 2 11,160 
Division 3 14,711 
Division 4 10,344 
Division 5 11,877 
 
The population of the District per the County is 59,657.  The average population of a 
division is 11,931.  The difference between the high and the low is 4367.  This would 
appear to be sufficient for the Board to find that the divisions are different in population 
to require a change.  The determination of what is sufficient is for the Board to determine. 



 
Proposed Population of the Divisions: 
 
The proposed new boundaries of the divisions are as provided in Attachment A.  The 
changes in the boundaries would put the division population as follows: 
 
Division 1 11,565 (unchanged) 
Division 2 11,160 (unchanged) 
Division 3 13,118 
Division 4 11,937 
Division 5 11,753 (unchanged) 
 
The total of the population is still the same at 58,289.  The difference between top and 
bottom division is 1958.  This is closer than the previous organization.  All directors 
would remain in their current divisions. 
  

 
ALTERNATIVES AND ANALYSIS: 
 
The Board may consider any other changes in the boundaries of the divisions as they may 
desire and staff will prepare the changes.  The limitation on changes from the laws 
perspective is 180 days before any election that this is appropriate for.  This means that 
Casitas would have to pass the resolution by the second meeting in April 2012 or the 
changes would not be in time for the November 2012 election. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors take the following actions: 
 

1. Pass a motion that the populations of the divisions are sufficiently different to 
require a change in division boundaries based upon the current populations of the 
divisions.  (Requires 2/3 vote) 

2. Adopt the attached resolution changing the boundaries of the divisions and 
requesting the Elections Division at the County of Ventura to implement the new 
division boundaries before the November 2012 election. (Requires majority vote) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION REQUESTING THE COUNTY ELECTIONS OFFICE TO CHANGE 
THE BOUNDRIES OF THE DIVISIONS OF DIRECTORS FOR CASITAS 

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT IN ACCORDANCE WITH ATTACHMENT A 
 

WHEREAS,  the Board has determined that the population of the divisions are 
sufficiently different, in accordance with the information provided by the County, that 
there is a need to redistrict; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Board has reviewed the proposed boundaries and the population 
within those boundaries; and  
 

WHEREAS, each of the current Directors are still within their respective division; 
and  
 

WHEREAS, the new boundaries more correctly balance the population of the 
Divisions of the District; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 
Casitas Municipal Water District that the Boundaries are changed in accordance with the 
Attachment A as presented at the Board meeting on  _____________, 2012, and the 
County Elections is requested to change the Boundaries of Casitas Municipal Water 
District Director Divisions effective for the November 2012 election.   
 
 ADOPTED this ___th day of  ________________________, 2012 
 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      President, Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Secretary, Casitas Municipal Water District 



ATTACHMENT A 
 

The following Electorate Precincts shall be moved from Casitas Municipal Water District 
Division 3 to Division 4: 
 
 

Oak View 105 
Oak View 106 
Oak View 107 
Oak View 108 
Oak View 109 
Oak View 113 
Oak View 117 
Oak View 118 

Casitas Springs 104 
Casitas Springs 105 
Casitas Springs 139 
Casitas Springs 140 
Casitas Springs 141 
Casitas Springs 142 
Casitas Springs 143 
Casitas Springs 144 
Casitas Springs 145 
Casitas Springs 147 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
March 9, 2012 
 
Administrative Law Judge Richard Smith 
Public Advisors Office 
505 Van Ness Avenue, Room 2103 
San Francisco, CA 94102 
 
Subject:  Golden State Water Company Ojai Service Area Application No. 11-07-017- Public Notice 
 
Dear Judge Smith: 
 

The notice for the Public Participation Hearing for Golden State Water Company (GSWC) Rate Increase 
seems to be using Casitas Municipal Water District’s (CMWD) wholesale water sales as one of the 
reasons for this rate increase.  The notice reads: 
 

"These increases are necessary to keep up with increased purchased water and pumping costs which 
are out of GSWC's control and to meet GSWC's goals to ensure a safe and reliable source of supply, 
improve infrastructure and to promote the efficient use of water."  (Emphasis added, see enclosure) 
 

Here are the facts surrounding water purchases from CMWD: 
 

CMWD is the only source of water for Golden State to purchase for the Ojai service area. 
 

Golden States' water purchases from CMWD have been consistently dropping:   
 

In 2008 – GWSC purchased 646 AF 
In 2009 - 578 AF 
In 2010 - 266 AF 
In 2011 - 113 AF (See enclosed consumption report) 
 

And finally, CMWD has not had a rate increase in three years. 
 

Simply stated, GSWC is purchasing less water with no increase in price. 
 

CMWD wishes to make these facts absolutely clear to the Public Utility Commissioners and in the 
Administrative Law Judge's record, that wholesale water purchased from CMWD is NOT one of the 
reasons to justify a rate increase. 
 

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on this issue of importance to CMWD and the community of 
Ojai. 



Sincerely yours, 
 
 
 
Russ Baggerly 
President of the Board 
 
cc: Lisa Bilir - Division of Ratepayers Advocates, 505 Van Ness Avenue, San Francisco, CA  94102 
 
Enclosures: Notice of Public Participation Hearing, Golden State Water Company Ojai Service 

Area Application No. 11-07-017 - February 29, 2012 
  CMWD Water Consumption Report for GSWC 



Casitas Municipal Water District
Monthly Cost Analysis
2011/2012
03/08/2012

Marzula & Operation Fisheries Project Name Cost of the
Marzula  of Robles Fish Passage Fish Passage

11-5-21-5049-12 11-5-??-????-14 11-5-28-50??-??

2003/2004 0.00 132,143.20 6,066.93
2004/2005 0.00 298,006.35 39,124.63 8,079,888.06
2005/2006 274,270.75 144,052.92 93,406.52 0.00
2006/2007 194,409.73 110,707.78 188,651.75 114,790.04
2007/2008 21,111.90 117,299.80 272,644.56 0.00
2008/2009 1,207.75 88,201.00 307,739.00 0.00
2009/2010 216,797.47 124,874.54 342,756.94 0.00
2010/2011 169,932.80 148,506.23 373,535.60

Expenditures
July 691.67 5,316.70 21,434.00

August 1,457.70 2,986.95 24,849.61

September 0.00 14,252.92 26,760.88

October 25.63 11,707.92 31,235.08

November 0.00 10,201.99 20,761.81

December 492.25 7,659.84 35,777.04

January 0.00 16,834.31 22,743.34

Feburary 1,423.79 4,986.34 28,243.01 Less: Grants
CA Coastal Conservancy -1,750,000.00

March CA Dept of Fish & Game -1,500,000.00
CA Dept of Fish & Game -1,000,000.00

April Pacific States Marine -8,988.86
    (Timber Debris Fence)

May Pacific States Marine -18,980.00
    (Vaki Shroud)

June

Total Cost YTD 4,091.04 73,946.97 211,804.77 Total Cost TD    8,194,678.10

Less: Grant Funding    -4,277,968.86

Total Project Cost 881,821.44 1,237,738.79 1,835,730.70 Total Project Cost   3,916,709.24

Total: Operation of Robles, Fisheries and Fish Passage 6,990,178.73

Prepared by dcollin 03/08/2012 Page 1

















   CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
TREASURER'S MONTHLY REPORT OF INVESTMENTS

03/08/12
 

Weighed 
Average 

Type of Date of Amount of Current Rate of Date of % of Days to Days to
Invest Institution CUSIP Maturity Deposit Mkt Value Interest Deposit Portfolio Maturity Maturity

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XSP930 12/13/13 $743,750 $733,901 3.125% 07/01/10 5.77% 635 37
*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XWNB10 06/12/15 $729,603 $748,552 2.875% 07/01/10 5.88% 1174 69
*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XWW470 03/09/12 $707,315 $700,021 1.125% 06/30/10 5.50% 1 0
*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3134A4VG60 11/17/15 $801,683 $806,148 4.750% 07/19/10 6.33% 1329 84
*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3134G3GT10 10/18/17 $220,000 $220,693 1.250% 01/03/12 1.73% 2020 35
*TB Federal National MTG Association 3136FR3N10 09/20/16 $723,188 $702,198 2.125% 09/20/11 5.52% 1632 90
*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EABA60 11/17/17 $1,000,000 $1,216,330 5.125% 01/03/12 9.56% 2049 196
*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EABS70 09/27/13 $766,605 $741,258 4.125% 07/01/10 5.82% 559 33
*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EACD90 07/28/14 $739,907 $745,024 3.000% 07/01/10 5.85% 860 50
*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EACE70 09/21/12 $723,646 $707,350 2.125% 06/30/10 5.56% 193 11
*TB Federal Natl MTG Assn 31398AYY20 09/16/14 $739,123 $743,862 3.000% 07/01/10 5.84% 908 53
*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828JE10 07/15/18 $1,055,030 $1,209,266 1.375% 07/06/10 9.50% 2287 217
*TB US Treasury Notes 912828JW10 12/31/13 $709,352 $715,204 1.500% 04/01/10 5.62% 653 37
*TB US Treasury Notes 912828LZ10 11/30/14 $718,129 $732,536 2.125% 07/01/10 5.76% 982 57
*TB US Treasury Notes 912828MB30 12/15/12 $709,707 $705,033 1.125% 06/30/10 5.54% 277 15
*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828MF40 01/15/20 $1,041,021 $1,210,949 1.375% 07/01/10 9.51% 2827 269

Accrued Interest $58,062 $88,895

Total in Gov't Sec. (11-00-1055-00&1065) $12,186,121 $12,727,221 85.54%

*CD CD - $0 $0 0.000% 0.00%

Total Certificates of Deposit: (11.13506 $0 $0 0.00%

** LAIF as of:  (11-00-1050-00) N/A $442 $442 0.38% Estimated 0.00%

*** COVI as of: (11-00-1060-00) N/A $2,150,642 $2,150,642 0.81% Estimated 14.45%

TOTAL FUNDS INVESTED $14,337,204 $14,878,304 100.00%

Total Funds Invested last report $14,337,204 $14,866,935

Total Funds Invested 1 Yr. Ago $14,526,236 $14,493,579

**** CASH IN BANK (11-00-1000-00) EST $2,611,520 $2,611,520
CASH IN Western Asset Money Market $6 $6 0.010%
CASH IN PIMMA Money Market $502,000 $502,000

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS $17,450,730 $17,991,830

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS 1 YR AGO $17,845,534 $17,812,877

*CD CD - Certificate of Deposit
*TB TB - Federal Treasury Bonds or Bills 
** Local Agency Investment Fund 
*** County of Ventura Investment Fund

Estimated interest rate, actual not due at present time.
**** Cash in bank

No investments were made pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 53601, Section 53601.1 
and subdivision (i) Section 53635 of the Government Code.
All investments were made in accordance with the Treasurer's annual statement of 
investment policy.


	3-14-12 agenda.pdf
	2-22-12 min
	award Lazy River coating
	resolution Lazy River coating and repair
	bills
	Executive Minutes 03 07 2012
	Rec Minutes 03 05 12
	board memo-holiday
	ARTICLE 16  HOLIDAYS

	2011 Redistricting
	ATTACHMENT A-2012 redistricting
	Formal Comment to PAO GSWCRate Increase
	Board Report - Montly Costs 20011-12
	Ltr from Tessa Roper re GSWC
	News
	Investment Report 03-08-2012

